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MEMORANDUM 

P.O. BOX 4100    FRISCO, COLORADO 80443  

 
TO: MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL 

FROM:  DIANE MCBRIDE, ASSISTANT TOWN MANAGER     

RE: FRISCO BAY MARINA – SOLE SOURCE CONTRACT WITH MATTHEW STAIS ARCHITECTS 

DATE: AUGUST 27, 2019

 
Summary and Background:  At the August 13, 2019, Council meeting, staff gave Council an 
update on the marina projects completed in 2019 or near completion at this time.  The projects 
included the Big Dig, Phase 1 site improvements, fuel dock/relocation, wetlands mitigation, lift 
station/sanitation, and fire standpipe design and installation.   
 
Staff also reviewed the budget with Council.  Accounting for all projected Phase 1 costs, there is 
currently $3.3M in the Marina capital fund balance.  Initially, it was thought the marina office and 
guest services building, intersection/entry improvements and sidewalks, paths and parking 
areas could be constructed in 2020, with a rough estimate of $3.6M cost.  However, with the 
new layout of the marina and the projects completed in 2019, along with less available funding, 
staff brought forward the marina discussion seeking Council direction and prioritization of 
projects. 
 
Council directed staff to complete the entire design of the Phase 2 site, as depicted in the 
picture on page two, before any additional construction is begun to ensure the final outcomes 
meet the Council’s complete vision for the Marina.   
 
To complete the design of the Phase 2 site, including the design of the new food and beverage 
building and the scaled back review and design of the office and guest services building, staff is 
recommending a sole source contract with Matthew Stais Architects.  Mr. Stais designed the 
marina office and guest services building.  Mr. Stais also served on the Advisory Committee for 
the Frisco Marina Park Master Plan.  He is knowledgeable, professional, understands the 
projects, including the financial limitations, and is able to give the project a fresh look, while still 
respecting the integrity of the master plan.   
 
Analysis:  Through the Town’s budgeting process, Council authorized staff to pursue funding 
(bond revenues), in addition to projected marina fund revenues and reserve accounts, for 2019 
marina capital projects totaling $3,996,700 and an estimated list of projects in 2020 totaling 
$3,602.500.   
 
The Big Dig and Phase 1 site improvements are complete at this time.  Per the Frisco Marina 
Park Master Plan, the Phase 2 site is slated for the construction of both the office and guest 
services building and the food and beverage building, landscape, finished sidewalks/paths/and 
drop off areas, and a splash pad and skating pond.   
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Finishing the design of the Phase 2 site area will ensure future construction is aligned with the 
Council’s priorities and vision for the area. Finishing the architectural designs as identified on 
the Master Plan, or per Town Council’s direction, would complete the vision for the area.  
 
The process will also help Council answer questions about the future of the Lund House and the 
Island Grill buildings, the seasonal or year-round nature of the spaces, as well as any other 
proposed amenities in this area. The process will also help depict the scale and scope of all 
buildings to be constructed in the project site area in order to scale the buildings and facilities 
together, and to identify efficiencies and impacts to both buildings.  
 
Frisco Bay Marina - Phase 2 Site: 
 

 
 
Financial Impact:  On January 22, 2019, the Town Council approved Ordinance 19-01 
authorizing issuance of Marina Enterprise Revenue Bonds in an amount not to exceed 
$6,000,000 to provide funding for capital projects to expand capacity at the Marina to complete 
the first two phases of the Frisco Marina Park Master Plan. Note: with initial project costs 
estimated at $7.6M, and bond proceeds of $5M, it was understood the Town would need an 
additional $2.5M or more to complete all of the proposed projects at the Marina.  
 
The projected cost estimated for 2019 projects (Big Dig, Phase 1) was $3,996,700.  The actual 
cost is estimated at approximately $4,300,000.  There is currently $3.3M in the Marina capital 
fund balance, accounting for all projected Phase 1 costs.  Construction costs for new buildings 
are estimated between $400/ft2 and $600/ft2 at this time, based on estimates received in 2019.  
Such costs will impact the design of the buildings.  The new office and guest services building 
was originally designed as a 4,846ft2 space, and the F&B building was proposed as a stand-
alone 2,500ft2 building with indoor and outdoor seating.  Both buildings will be reviewed and 
designed for functionality and economy with future expansion options as appropriate.   
 
The proposed agreement with Matthew Stais Architects for $123,000 will come out of the 
Marina Fund Capital Improvements (90-9000-4444).  There are sufficient funds in this account 
for this work.     
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Alignment with Strategic Plan:  Per the 2019-2020 Town of Frisco Strategic Plan, the 
improvement of the waterfront marina is a goal for Council.  The Town recognizes the 
importance of its recreational opportunities as essential to the Town’s vibrancy, providing unique 
opportunities for visitors and locals to explore, play, experience, and share with the broader 
community.  Such vibrant recreation is central to the community’s economic vitality and 
therefore a high priority for the Town Council to maintain, sustain, and protect for future 
generations.   

Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommends a sole source contract with Matthew Stais 
Architects for the design of the Phase 2 site improvements.  Under section 9-3 of the Town 
Code, the Town Council is authorized to approve a contract for goods or services without a 
competitive bidding process when, in the opinion of the Council, the goods or services are best 
obtained from a single source due to specialized skills, knowledge or experience, unique and 
relevant experience, knowledge of the Town or exceptional qualifications or reputation in the 
field.  Mr. Stais served on the Advisory Committee for the Frisco Marina Park Master Plan and 
designed the marina office and guest services building.  He has the knowledge and the unique 
and relevant experience associated with this project, as well as the ability to take a fresh look at 
the area to design structures and amenities that meet the goals of Council while managing the 
financial realities of the project.  The proposed agreement with Matthew Stais Architects is fair 
and reasonable in light of the market for similar services.      

Another option for Council to consider would be to release an RFP for the work.  Given the 
dollar amount of $123,000 for the project, Council may opt to release a competitive bidding 
process.  This process may take a few months to complete and bids may come in higher or 
lower than the $123,000 proposal.     

Reviews and Approvals: 

This report has been reviewed and approved by: 
Bonnie Moinet, Finance Director – Approved 
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TOWN OF FRISCO 
COUNTY OF SUMMIT 

STATE OF COLORADO 
RESOLUTION 19-28 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH MATTHEW STAIS 
ARCHITECTS FOR THE DESIGN OF PHASE TWO SITE IMPROVEMENTS AT THE 
FRISCO BAY MARINA WITHOUT A COMPETITIVE BIDDING PROCESS. 
 
WHEREAS, under section 9-3 of the Town Code, the Town Council is authorized to 
approve a contract for goods or services without a competitive bidding process when, in 
the opinion of the Council, the goods or services are best obtained from a single source 
due to specialized skills, knowledge or experience, unique and relevant experience, 
knowledge of the Town or exceptional qualifications or reputation in the field; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Frisco Bay Marina (the “Marina”) desires to work with Matthew Stais 
Architects on the design of Phase Two site improvements to successfully plan for future 
construction projects; and  
 
WHEREAS, Matthew Stais Architects has previously been engaged by the Town to 
design the marina office and guest services building; and  
 
WHEREAS, as a result of Matthew Stais Architects’ previous work in designing the 
marina office and guest services building and serving on the Advisory Committee for the 
Frisco Marina Park Master Plan, the Town Council finds that Matthew Stais Architects 
has specialized knowledge and experience that is unique and relevant to the Town and 
to the Marina’s operations and, accordingly, the design of Phase Two is best obtained 
from a single source without a competitive bidding process; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that the price set forth in the attached agreement 
with Matthew Stais Architects is fair and reasonable, relative to the general market 
prices for the goods and services to be provided by Matthew Stais Architects. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
FRISCO THAT: 
 
The attached agreement between the Town and Matthew Stais Architects, is hereby 
approved and the Town Mayor and Town Clerk are hereby authorized to execute the 
same on behalf of the Town of Frisco. 
 
INTRODUCED, READ AND ADOPTED THIS 27TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2019. 

 
Town of Frisco, Colorado: 
 
 _____________________________  

        Gary Wilkinson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Deborah Wohlmuth, CMC, Town Clerk 
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